
6 March 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Wednesday, 13 March 2019
beginning at

7:00 pm
in 

The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 
2GJ

TO: Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Chairman)
Councillor Tim Groves (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Margaret Atkinson Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor Michael Hughes Councillor David Pragnell

Staff Contacts: Mateusz Dobrowolski, Case Management Officer           Tel:023 
8068 8080;Please email: DemocraticServices@eastleigh.gov.uk to 
register to speak before the meeting .
Min Partner, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8439; Email: 
min.partner@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN



Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website -

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above.

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and 
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2019.

2. Apologies    

3. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

4. Public Participation    

5. Chairman's report    

6. Hiltingbury Lakes Report    (Pages 5 - 12)

7. North Millers Dale Traffic Concerns    (Pages 13 - 18)

8. Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Various Order Report    (Pages 19 - 26)

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

1. FIELD_TITLE

2. FIELD_TITLE

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, 19 June 2019 at 7:00 pm

at The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church, 
Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GJ

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 16 January 2019  (7:00 pm – 7:50 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Broadhurst (Chairman); Councillors Groves, Atkinson, 
Grajewski, Hughes and Pragnell

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

21. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2018 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

23. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

24. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of 2019. He was 
pleased to see everyone in good health and hoped for a productive year 
for the Committee.

25. LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT AND ITEMS FROM MEMBER 
WORKING GROUP INCLUDING LOCAL  AREA ACTION PLAN

The Committee considered the report of the Local Area Manager which 
outlined local projects requiring funding and grants. It also considered the 
Cemeteries Fees and Charges coming into effect from 1 January 2019.
The report included the Local Area Action Plan 2019/2020. 

RESOLVED – 

(1) That the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Action 
Plan 2019/20 shown in Appendix 1 of the Agenda be approved 
for adoption and publication.

(2) That £1276 from this Committee’s contingency budget to fund 
the repairs to the solar lighting at Peverells Wood/Constantine 
Avenue would not  be allocated.

1

Agenda Item 1



2

(3) That up to £2000 from Committee reserves be allocated to 
provide flower towers and hanging baskets in 2019 and that the 
Local Area Manager would seek sponsorship contributions for 
these.

(4) That the Cemeteries fees and charges as shown below be 
approved.

Cemeteries Fees and Charges with effect from 1 January 2019
Cemeteries 1 April 

2018   £
1 Jan 
2019 £

Change 
%

Internment:-
All charges inclusive of VAT where 
applicable

Child less than 12 years old (including still 
born)

Single depth 948.00 982.00 3.5

Double depth 1,206.00 1,249.00 3.5

Re-open to single depth 1,023.00 1,059.00 3.5

Cremated remains 318.00 330.00 3.8

For right to scatter ashes 86.00 89.00 3.5

Additional charge for providing a 24 hour 
burial service 528.00 547.00 3.6

Exhumation POA POA

Additional Charge for Weekend Working
Or late funerals incurring overtime

200.00 207.00 3.5

Plot in Columbarium (includes purchase 
and rights for inscribed plaque and first 
interment)

808.00 837.00 3.6

Exclusive burial rights - 30 years 1 April 
2018   £

1 Jan 
2019 £

Change 
%

Plot selected by Council  (purchased at 
time of burial):-

Plot for Adult 824.00 853.00 3.5

2



3

Plot for Child 469.00 486.00 3.6

Plot for Cremated remains 336.00 348.00 3.6

Memorials 1 April 
2018   £

1 Jan 
2019 £

Change 
%

Inscribing vase under 10” 90.00 94.00 4.4

Any memorial (includes memorial licence 
for 10 years) 356.00 369.00 3.7

Charges for additional inscription 81.00 84.00 3.7

26. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

Local Area Manager gave a short presentation on guidelines that had to 
be taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular 
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This was set 
against the broader policy framework.

27. PLANNING APPLICATION - 30 KINGSWAY GARDENS, CHANDLER'S 
FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 1FE

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
and Development ( Agenda item 8) concerning an application for works 
under Tree Preservation Orders. 1 no. Oak. Crown reduce by 3 metres. 
(Ref.T/18/84118).

The Committee was advised that there were no further updates.

RESOLVED – 

That permission be GRANTED as set out in the report.

(NOTES: 1) One resident and the applicant spoke in support of the 
application.2) The reference in the report to the “Councillor lives in an 
adjoining property” was not correct as Councillor Judith Grajewski lived 
several properties away from the applicant’s property.)

28. PLANNING APPEALS

The Legal Services Manager reported:-

(a)          that the following appeals had been lodged:-
 
78 Thornbury Wood, Chandler's Ford, SO53 5DQ. Appeal against the 
Council's refusal of planning permission for the erection of a two storey 

3



4

side extension, single storey side extension incorporating a raised platform 
and new first floor window to rear elevation. (Ref. H/18/83592)

This was a delegated decision.

53b Kingsway, Chandler's Ford, SO53 1FH.
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the erection 
of a two storey front & side, single-storey rear & side extensions. (Ref. 
H/18/83582)

This was a delegated decision.
 
6 Warren Close, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 2JG

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the 
construction of two storey side extension to allow subdivision of existing 
three bedroom dwelling into 2No. two bedroom dwellings with associated 
parking and amenity space. (Ref. F/18/82981).

This was a Delegated Decision.

(b)          that the following appeals had been allowed:-

46 Common Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1HP.
The appeal made against the Council’s decision to refuse a planning 
permission for a single storey front, side and rear extensions, addition of 
first floor to provide accommodation and front dormer. (Ref.H/18/83095).

It was a delegated decision.

(c)          that the following appeals had been dismissed:-

29 Peverells Wood Avenue, Chandler's Ford 
Appeal against council’s decision to refuse a planning application for 
remodelling of the roof including raising in height and construction of 3no. 
front and 3no. rear dormer windows. (Ref.H/18/83178).

This was a delegated decision.
 
22 Ashbridge Rise, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1SA.

Appeal against the council’s decision to refuse a planning application for 
the proposed first floor extension over garage.(Ref. H/18/83145).
It was a delegated decision.

RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

M6097

4



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MANAGEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE OF HILTINGBURY LAKES

Report of the Direct Services Manager and the Local Area Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that  

(1) Developer contributions available to this Committee totalling £135,000 are allocated 
to projects to refurbish and enhance Hiltingbury Lakes.

(2) The projects be implemented and overseen by the Direct Services Manager
(3) The allocation of £125,000 of New Homes Bonus money to these projects be noted.
(4) The allocation of additional revenue funding to maintain the area, once works are 

completed, be noted; and
(5) The programmes of work be widely publicised to ensure awareness and in order to 

assist public understanding of the benefits and long-term outcome.

Summary

This report gives the outcome of a feasibility study into the care and management of 
Hiltingbury Lakes and provides options for future maintenance.

It gives a costed work programme and includes the necessity to provide a long term 
maintenance plan.

Statutory Powers

The ‘Localism Act 2011’

Strategic Implications 

1. Green Borough – This project will significantly improve the quality and 
functionality of this area of public open space, by making it more attractive to 
use by a wider range of people.  In addition it will provide a more attractive 
environment that better provides for peoples recreational and social 
requirements.

5

Agenda Item 6



Eastleigh Borough Council

2. Healthy Community - An improved and multifunctional area of greenspace 
will facilitate improved physical and mental health and well-being for local 
people, through the provision of works set out below, which will promote 
physical activity and mental well-being through contact with our natural 
environment.

Introduction

3. This feasibility study was commissioned by the Chandler's Ford and 
Hiltingbury Local Area Committee, in order to plan the future care and 
maintenance of the much loved and valued local public amenity that is 
Hiltingbury Lakes.

4. There has been a call for improvements to be undertaken on the site. The 
water system is currently inadequate due to blockages and a failing weir. 
Areas of the site are overgrown and there is an over-abundance of invasive, 
non-native species such as cherry laurel, rhododendron and bamboo. 
Footpaths throughout the site have become overgrown and blocked and 
prevent access to areas of the site. There are reports of rats on site which has 
been attributed to the dead wood that exists in some areas; however any 
infestation is likely to be due to a number of factors for example a combination 
of visitors feeding the ducks and the lack of management of the habitat which 
is providing a natural harbourage for this pest.

5. The site has real potential to be of greater value to local residents, and to 
sustain a more desirable species of flora and fauna whilst being a welcoming 
place for recreational use.

6. In conducting this study a number of different approaches were taken as 
shown below:

 Information was gathered from  Countryside Management staff to 
understand what management plans and regimes were in place; to 
determine what works were carried out on site, and  the aim of  these 
works.

 Discussions were held with local Councillors to understand locally 
expressed desires of residents and the history of the site, particularly in 
understanding the sense of ‘place’ the site has in the local community of 
Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury.

 A tree survey was carried out to identify any urgent tree works and to 
identify what significant tree species existed on site.

 Finally, a survey of public opinion was undertaken, both on site via face-to-
face engagement and also in the form of an online questionnaire. This 
gave local residents and users the opportunity to air their views about the 
site and the thoughts they had in respect of its future management and 
maintenance.

6



Eastleigh Borough Council

Findings

7. It is clear from discussions with existing Land Management staff that the site 
has not had a formal management plan in place for a number of years, this 
has resulted in maintenance on the site being reactive, with staff often only 
dealing with individual problems or issues as they arise with no planned follow 
up to prevent similar instances in the future. This lack of planned management 
and maintenance has created an image of the site being neglected, with 
pathways overgrown, trees left to biodegrade where fallen, resulting in areas 
of the site becoming inaccessible. The waterways are in a state of disrepair 
with areas blocked by fallen and degrading trees and shrubs, which is 
restricting the flow of water between the lakes causing areas to become 
flooded and inaccessible.

8. Discussions with local Councillors helped to understand some of the history of 
the site, which dates back to previous land owners and how the site was seen 
as a valuable asset within the local community who would use it for fishing, 
walks and picnics on the open grass areas and generally spend recreational 
time enjoying this tranquil area.  It was made clear that the area is that of 
woodland and lakes and that maintaining it as such must underpin all future 
actions.

9. The tree survey which was carried out identified a number of significant trees 
on site Oak, Beech and Pine. In the main the majority of these large well 
established trees are in good health and provide an excellent tree canopy for 
the site. However a number of other species exist on site such as Ash, Birch, 
Sycamore and Holly which appear in the main to be self-set trees with a 
reduced root structure. A number of these trees are the main cause of 
problems with regard to falling and blocking areas of the site, and to an extent 
are restricting light into areas of the site which would encourage the growth of 
more desirable species.

10. Through the surveys conducted we engaged with over 300 people, and found 
that generally they value the site and understand what a real asset it is to the 
local community and area. It is considered a lovely spot which people enjoy 
using, although they think more could be done to improve the site. Negative 
comments were mainly around overgrown and inaccessible areas, fallen trees, 
broken waterways, silted up lakes and muddy, narrow pathways, all of which 
create an impression of an area which is not maintained or cared for.

11. The majority of people engaged with use the site for walking their dogs, others 
use it for family outings, picnics, fishing and just enjoying the peace and quiet 
the site offers. Most people live within walking distance and have been visiting 
the site for several years.

12. Some of the things that people wanted to see change included: introduction of 
a café, surveillance cameras, a toilet for fishermen, an outdoor gym, a water 
fountain, a boardwalk, making the site more accessible, creating an area for 
picnics, installing more bins, getting rid of the rats, opening up the site for 
more wildlife and the introduction of interpretation boards to explain the history 

7



Eastleigh Borough Council

of the site as well as what you can expect to see.  Many of these suggestions 
have been incorporated into the proposals.  Others were considered 
incompatible with the broad intentions of the site.

Options for Future Maintenance (including phasing)

13. There is an option to take no action and to continue with the existing regime 
with little or no intervention. This option whilst requiring no investment or 
increase in existing maintenance budgets will lead to further deterioration of 
the site. Footpaths will become impassable and large swathes of the site will 
become inaccessible for the public. The trees on site are likely to become 
dangerous and present a future risk to anyone accessing the site. The biggest 
risk however will be in respect of the lakes and the waterways on site which 
will inevitably becoming silted and blocked. This is likely to have a detrimental 
impact on local residents as a result of flooding. For the above reasons this 
option is not recommended.

Removal of Invasive Species (Phase 1)

14. Removal of invasive species: The majority of the laurel on site needs to be 
removed. This will enable light to reach the ground and encourage a more 
diverse ground flora to develop, also making the site less dark and oppressive. 
It will make the site more aesthetically pleasing and will open up some of the 
narrow, overgrown pathways that people mentioned in the survey. If the paths 
are more open it will allow more sunlight to reach the ground and help prevent 
waterlogging. In addition the mature trees on site which are currently being 
crowded by the laurel, will be allowed to grow develop fully.

15. Selective removal and reduction of the rhododendron and bracken along the 
boundary with Lake Road needs to be carried out. This will open up the view 
and the access to the lake, creating a larger more inviting open space with a 
vista of the lake.

16. The bamboo is an unnecessary addition to the site which should be removed. 
It is non-native and has limited wildlife value. It is a plant which is fast growing 
and requires intensive management intervention to keep it under control. Its 
removal will open the area up and create an environment which will allow 
more native species to grow and be managed in the future.

Improving the Water System (Phase 2)

17. The flow of water through the site needs to be improved. Currently there is a 
significant amount of deadwood within the lake and the ponds which is 
creating blockages to the flow of water. It is also degrading within the water 
systems and is negatively impacting the quality of the water and desirable 
wildlife which we want to encourage. There is also a failing weir which is 
allowing water to be held in the higher lake. This will require a specialist 
wetland engineering solution. It is proposed that the works to the water system 
are carried out in phase two, following the completion of the removal of the 

8



Eastleigh Borough Council

invasive species. This approach will provide improved access to the water 
systems.  The necessary approvals will be sought from the Environment 
Agency.

Water Course between Lakes (Phase 2) 

18. The main water courses between the lakes have fallen into a state of 
disrepair. There is also a failed revetment on the bank of the water course 
which will require repair. It is proposed that these works are completed during 
phase two in order for the water system to work fully from the top lake through 
to the lower ponds.

Arboricultural Work (Phase 1)

19. Work to remove the self-set trees and the minor works to the desirable tree 
stock will be carried out during phase one, this approach will ensure the best 
use of equipment and staff on site.  The desirable tree stock will, depending 
on health, give consideration to the retention or planting of some Ash, if 
possible, in order to assist with countering Ash die back.

Interpretation and Information (Phase 3)

20. There is a need to improve signage throughout the site with information about 
the history of the site and the flora and fauna. There is also a need for 
educational notices explaining why it is not helpful to feed bread to the ducks. 
This phase would also review provision of bins and benches.

Increase the Presence of Wildflowers (Phase 3)

21. Phase 3 would include the planting of marginal plants at the edges of the 
lakes to help create more wild flowers and add to the pleasant aesthetics. The 
removal of laurel bushes, in phase 1 will create space and light for this 
planting to take hold and flourish. Species of wild flowers would be native to 
the UK and suited to existing in close proximity to water. The floating beds will 
be removed from the lakes.  A significant element of this phase will be the 
introduction of a reed bed at the Hiltingbury Road end of the site. Its purpose 
will be to filter and improve the oxygenation of the water as it flows through the 
site.

Reinstatement and Introduction of Footpaths 

22. Repair and improve footpath system throughout the site, this work will be 
carried out upon completion of phases 1, 2 and 3. Generally the footpath 
network throughout the site has become unusable due to fallen trees and 
overgrowing invasive species. In order to ensure the site is accessible to all 
and safe to use in the future there is a need to reinstate the existing footpath 
network.  The network will be in keeping with the woodland nature of the site, 
and will not over-urbanise it.

9



Eastleigh Borough Council

Summary of Preferred Options

23. The summary of preferred options is:-

 Removal of non-native species items 12, 13, 14 and 17 these works would 
take approximately 14 weeks to complete at a cost of £95,000. This work 
will include removal of fallen and degrading trees. The commencement 
date for this works would be programmed for late summer 2019 in order to 
take advantage of dry ground conditions for equipment and vehicular 
access.

 Appoint specialist wetland engineer for water course repairs and 
improvements, 15 and 16.  This work will be programmed to commence on 
the completion of phase one - estimated budget of £55,000.

 Planting of wild flowers and general improvement to planted areas 
including introduction of a reed bed, shown in item 19 to be carried out 
during winter 2020 - estimated £25,000.

 Repair and improve footpath system item 20, on completion of phases 
one, two and three - estimated at £75,000.

 Installation of interpretation boards, benches and litter bins item 18, this 
work would be part of the final phase and would be carried out in the 
spring of 2020, - estimated at £10,000.  

Future Maintenance

24. Costed maintenance regimes for the site will be created and in place when the 
above works are completed in order to prevent the site becoming unmanaged 
in the future. It is proposed that a site specific management plan is drawn up 
which will clearly set out the aims and objectives for the site in the future. The 
maintenance regime to achieve these objectives can then be agreed and 
delivered. The long term vision for the site is for it to be an asset for the local 
community. In order for this to be sustainable in the long term consideration 
will be given to possible partnerships including the organisation and setting up 
of a friends group for Hiltingbury Lakes, which would include volunteers to 
assist in the future maintenance.

Financial Implications

25. The financial implications are as follows:-

 Developer contributions available to this Local Area Committee totalling 
£135,000 are allocated to this project.

 The allocation of £125,000 of New Homes Bonus money to this project.

 The Leader stated at the Budget Council meeting that the additional 
revenue costs would be added to the LAC budget from 2020/21.

10



Eastleigh Borough Council

 These funds have been allocated in the recently approved budget and will 
have no revenue impact.

Risk Assessment

26. Taking no action at this time will create a number of risks:
 Further deterioration of the site, leading to reputational damage. 
 The site will become inaccessible for the public, the trees on site are likely 

to become dangerous and present a future risk to anyone accessing the 
site. 

 The lakes and water system will inevitably becoming silted and blocked; 
this is likely to have a detrimental impact on local residents as a result of 
flooding.

27. Equality and Diversity Implications

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people in the following ways: The 
Council is committed to ensuring good quality parks and open spaces which is 
accessible to all.  For this reason, all maintenance and management of 
Hiltingbury Lakes will be undertaken by the Direct Services team, which will 
involve regular inspections.    This proposed work programme will result in an 
anticipated improvement for people with protected characteristic, particularly 
for age and disability; the proposed provision and improvement of accessible 
walk routes will have a positive impact on the elderly and those with reduced 
mobility being able to access the lakes through an improved network of 
footpaths. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, 
because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to 
carry out a full EIA.

Conclusion

28. Delivery of this project will have a significant environmental benefit within the 
local area and to the local community; the project will be delivered by the 
Direct Services unit who will provide progress reports to the Local Area 
Committee.  This project will be prominent within the public realm and have a 
positive impact for users and residents within the Chandlers Ford and 
Hiltingbury Area.

PAUL NAYLOR
DIRECT SERVICES MANAGER

Date: 26 February 2019
Contact Officer: Paul Naylor 
Tel No: 023 8068 8370
e-mail: paul.naylor@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Nil

11



Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

12



 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 

NORTH MILLERS DALE TRAFFIC STUDY

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that :- 

(1) Speed Limit Reminders (SLRs) and Speed Data Recorders (SDRs) be deployed on 
North Millers Dale. 

(2) That the road markings as shown in appendix 1 be implemented.

(3) That parking restriction measures be considered for inclusion in the 19/20 various 
order if the issue is shown to be a reoccurring one

Summary

The proposed measures are to reinforce the current speed limit by reminding drivers with 
an electronic sign which shows them their speed and reminds drivers of the signed limit. 
The road markings are to help highlight pedestrian crossing points and give the impression 
that the road narrows so as to encourage lower vehicle speeds.

Statutory Powers
 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: 
Tackling Congestion by dealing with inappropriate parking and 
helping to create an Excellent Environment for all. 

13

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

Introduction

2. North Millers Dale is a distributor road through the North Milers Dale estate 
linking to Hursley Road at one end and Flexford Road at the other. The road 
which is subject to a 30 mph limit, is made up of a series of sweeping bends 
off of which are nine road junctions and has six across estate footways 
emerging on to it. This road is also a bus route and signed as a recommended 
route for cyclists. Within the length of this road there are three uncontrolled 
pedestrian crossing points with islands on the centre line. The centre line is 
marked throughout the road’s length and on the longest bend at 
approximately the mid-point a bend warning sign has been used with a max 
speed 25mph sub plate.  

Due to the way in which North Millers Dale is connected it provides an 
opportunity for drivers to ‘miss out’ a busy intersection of Hursley Road, 
Hiltingbury Road and Flexford Road so the potential for rat running is present. 

In recent years eleven complaints from residents have been received all 
relating to the speed of traffic on North Millers Dale. Notably the complaints 
have all come from locations close to the side roads. This suggests that, to 
those emerging from the side roads, the speeds of vehicles on North Millers 
Dale whilst not necessarily exceeding the 30mph limit may still appear to be 
uncomfortably fast. Also at the mid-point of North Millers Dale is a public 
house which can be busy at times leading to inappropriate parking in the 
nearby roads  

3. Plan showing locations of complaints regarding speeding traffic

 

14



Eastleigh Borough Council

4. This plan of North Millers Dale shows the location of complaints about 
speeding traffic, each coloured dot represents one complaint (the coloured dot 
within the residential closes were issues with an overgrown hedge and an 
obstructed access)

Nature of the issues and proposed solution

5. To deal with the resident’s concerns regarding speeding traffic it is proposed 
to add this location to the list of site which use the speed limit reminders and 
speed data recorders.  As indicated in point 2 of the recommendations road 
markings are to be used to highlight the presence of the pedestrian crossing 
points. The proposed markings are indicated below on a modified photograph 
the lines give the impression the road is narrower thereby causing driver to 
slow down.

6.

7. In the side road close to the Public House parking restrictions should be used 
to prevent inappropriate parking within the junction. 

8. Traffic Management Department at Hampshire County Council have been 
contacted and have confirmed they have no objections to the recommended 
solutions in this report.

Financial Implications

9. Deploying the reactive signs cost £60 per deployment.   They are used for 
short terms only so as to remain effective.  This can be a one off deployment 
or if speed is found to be a regular continuing issue the location can be 
retained on the Chandlers Ford list of Speed Limit Reminder (SLR) and Speed 
Data Recorder (SDR) sites so that the speed limit reminder can be used 
annually.

10. Develop and implement a legal order to prevent inappropriate parking 
approximately £2500 (dependant on the number of objections)

15



Eastleigh Borough Council

11. Installing the road markings (white lines to highlight the island locations) 
approximately £250 for all three locations if undertaken whilst other lining 
works are being implemented in the area.

Funding for these works 

12. The works have been priced so that they could be taken forward as individual 
packages allowing the Local Area Committee to choose which elements to 
take forward. The section 106 funds held by each area should be looked into 
to see if there are any of these funds which could be used for these purposes. 
If no S106 contributions are available but there is still a will to take these 
measures forward an alternative funding stream maybe to combine the lining 
works with next year’s parking restriction works in the area thereby reducing 
the cost of these measures.

Risk Assessment

13. The public would be consulted upon these proposals if taken forward via the 
press adverts the notification on the Eastleigh Borough Council website and 
by the on street notices. 

Equality and Diversity Implications

14. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination directly, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  A specific 
Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out.  Enhancing road safety 
has implications for equality as young people, those on lower incomes, frail 
elderly, disabled people and women (who are more likely still to be walking 
with young children) are all more likely to be pedestrians and adversely 
affected by speed. And on this basis these measures promote equality 
amongst the travelling public  

Conclusion

15. The measures are aimed at making drivers aware and encouraging a change 
in behaviour rather that imposing additional driving restrictions. The parking 
restriction measures help to maintain road safety for all road users but should 
only be taken forward if this is a regularly reoccurring issue. Measures of this 
type have proved to be beneficial in other locations and are relatively low cost

DAVID PICKETT 
SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST

Date: 21 January 2019
Contact Officer: David Pickett
Tel No: 02380688000
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Location plan of lining measure at the pedestrian crossing 

points.

16



Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

List Background Papers  None.

17



This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, 13 March 2019 

CHANDLERS FORD AND HILTINGBURY VARIOUS ORDER REPORT

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist 

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that the Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee 
approve:

(1) The implementation of the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on Springhill Road, 
Steele Close and Ribble Close. as advertised.

(2) The amendment of the restriction across the frontage of 37 Fryern Close, removing 
this section from the order as a result of a resident’s objection.

(3) A review of Ford Avenue to include the northern end of the road and Tangmere 
Rise, before any order implementation. 

(4) A review of Brook Close to include the turning head, before any order 
implementation. 

(5) The Meon Crescent proposal with amendments, as indicated on the attached plan; 
and 

(6) The implementation of the Bournemouth Road restriction of waiting times within the 
layby outside of No 13 to No 17. 

Summary

A number of amendments to the current Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO) have been proposed and consulted on as set out above.

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.
Legal Agreements

Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

19

Agenda Item 8



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling 
Congestion by dealing with inappropriate parking and helping to create an 
Excellent Environment for all.

Consultation

2. The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the HCC Public 
Notices Portal and on public notices placed throughout affected areas. 

3. A number of comments were received regarding the proposals, and are, set-
out below.

Summary of Comments

4. This section summarises the responses received from residents in relation to 
each location and the Committee is asked to consider the comments received, 
in order to inform their decision on the implementation, or otherwise, of the 
Traffic Regulation Order.
 
The proposal for Fryern Close is designed to address obstructive parking at 
the western end of the close. One resident objected to the restriction across 
the frontage of No 37. On reviewing the objection it is apparent that the 
removal of section 81a  ‘’From the left hand boundary of No 38 in a north west 
direction to the left hand boundary of No 37 Fryern Close for a distance of 7 
metres’’ will still permit the restriction to address the issue it is designed to 
address.

The proposal for Ford Avenue is intended to address the regular obstructive 
parking at the Leigh Road end of the road and attracted three responses from 
Ford Avenue residents and three from Tangmere Rise residents (which is a 
small close off of Ford Avenue). All Six supported the proposals, but also 
mentioned the potential for the current issue to be displaced and requested 
that the measures be extended. Having visited the site and spoken to the 
residents it is considered prudent to apply to extend the proposed restriction 
to avoid the issue of displaced parking.

The proposal for Brook Close attracted three responses all of which were 
supportive. One  raised the question of the potential for parking in the turning 
head, which could cause access issues and also requested that the on street 
parking be limited to two hours. Having visited the site and spoken to the 
residents it is considered prudent to apply to extend the proposed restriction 
to avoid the issue of displaced parking.

The proposal for Meon Crescent has been proposed to address the issue of 
regular obstructive parking at the cul-d-sac entrance, inconsiderate parking on 
the footpath of the cul-d-sac and the obstruction of private accesses. This 
proposal received four responses three of which claimed there was no longer 
a problem to be addressed. The current situation has been confirmed with the 

20



Eastleigh Borough Council

residents who brought the matter to the council’s attention and as a result the 
proposal is for the restrictions on the junction to remain, and the restriction 
alongside the footpath to be withdrawn from the proposal.

The proposal for Bournemouth Road attracted two responses; the first stated 
that whilst they welcomed the restricted time period, they felt the time could be 
shorter and the second objected to the restriction, claiming local workers have 
nowhere to park for the day. For information this proposal was intended to 
deal with the issue of local workers parking all day outside the shops, which 
was adversely affecting the businesses.  The time limits chosen are felt to be 
appropriate for the businesses at this location.  

Financial Implications

5. The cost of the TRO and associated signs and road markings are 
approximately £4000 and are funded through the Local Area Committee 
budget.  

6. Any amendments extending restrictions or new proposals will require the 
Traffic Regulation Order to be re-advertised and further consultation to be 
carried out. 

Risk Assessment

7. The risk is considered to be low as the objections have been considered and 
where appropriate, the points raised were used to amend the proposals 
before the order is taken forward to be made permanent.

Equality and Diversity Implications

8. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people in the following ways:  The 
decision/change of service will result in an improvement for people with 
mobility problems. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been 
carried out, because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not 
proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

Conclusion

9. The proposed Traffic Regulation Order to introduce new waiting restrictions in 
Chandler Ford and Hiltingbury received nine positive objections (in that the 
writer feels the measures should go further) and one comment supporting the 
proposals and asking if additional measures could be considered locally. 
Additionally it received five objections, relating to specific elements of the 
order.

10. This report takes the comments into account and makes a recommendation to 
address the points raised by minor adjustments (reductions in restriction) to 
the order. 

21



Eastleigh Borough Council

DAVID PICKETT
Senior Engineering Specialist

Date: 25 January 2019
Contact Officer: David Pickett 
Tel No:
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Plan of each proposal

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

* Appendicies
Plans of the restricted areas.

Bournemouth Road

22



Eastleigh Borough Council

Charnwood Crescent

Meon Crescent amended plan

23



Eastleigh Borough Council

Ribble Close

Fryern Close

24



Eastleigh Borough Council

Springhill Close

Steele Close

25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Hiltingbury Lakes Report
	7 North Millers Dale Traffic Concerns
	8 Chandlers Ford and Hiltingbury Various Order Report

